PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE
DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES
L CB File No. RO08-06

March 10, 2006

EXPLANATION — Matter initalicsis new; matter in brackets [emitted-material] is material to be omitted.

AUTHORITY: 81, NRS 365.110, 365.175 and 365.335; 82, NRS 365.110 and 365.600; 83, NRS
366.110; 84, NRS 366.110 and 366.735; 85, NRS 360A.030, 366.110 and
366.733; 86, NRS 366.110 and 366.380; §7, NRS 366.085 and 366.110; 88, NRS
366.110 and 366.383; 89, NRS 366.110 and 366.740.

A REGULATION relating to taxation; making the electronic submission of certain statements by
asupplier of motor vehicle fuel mandatory by certain dates; authorizing the Department
of Motor Vehiclesto issue to a person a notice of violation and directive to cease from
further violation in lieu of an administrative fine under certain circumstances; setting
forth administrative fines for certain violations relating to the taxation of special fuel;
requiring a special fuel user to file aquarterly or annual tax return directly with the
Department under certain circumstances; making the electronic submission of certain
tax returns by a special fuel supplier mandatory by certain dates; and providing other
matters properly relating thereto.

Section 1. NAC 365.197 is hereby amended to read as follows:

365.197 1. Except asotherwise provided in NAC 365.198, a supplier frmay} shall
electronically submit to the Department the statement required pursuant to the provisions of NRS
365.175 |
— b bespeler o bun ool

(& On or after July 1, 2006, but before January 1, 2007, if the supplier:

(1) Receives 1,000,000 gallons or more of motor vehicle fuel for which taxes must be

paid pursuant to subsection 2 of NRS 365.175 during a monthly period; or
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(2) Receives 5,000,000 gallons or more of any type of motor vehicle fuel during a
monthly period.

(b) On or after January 1, 2007, but before January 1, 2008, if the supplier:

(1) Receives 100,000 gallons or more but less than 1,000,000 gallons of motor vehicle
fuel for which taxes must be paid pursuant to subsection 2 of NRS 365.175 during a monthly
period; or

(2) Receives 1,000,000 gallons or more but less than 5,000,000 gallons of any type of
motor vehicle fuel during a monthly period.

(c) On and after January 1, 2008, if the supplier has not electronically submitted the form
pursuant to paragraph (a) or (b) before that date.

2. The statement required pursuant to ftheprevisiens-ef} subsection 1 [-the-staterment} must
be:

(8) Submitted in aformat prescribed by the Department; and

(b) Accompanied by the payment of any tax that the supplier is required to remit with the
statement.

3. The payment of any tax that the supplier isrequired to remit with the statement must be
made [threugh-the-use-ef-a-credit-carda-debit-card-er-thel using an electronic transfer of money.

4. A statement filed pursuant to ftheprovisiens-of} subsection 1 shall be deemed received by
the Department after:

() The statement is accessible to the Department; and

(b) The Department has received the payment of any tax that the supplier was required to
remit with the statement.

Sec. 2. NAC 365.300 is hereby amended to read as follows:
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365.300 1. Except asotherwise provided in fsubsection-2} this section, if the Department
imposes an administrative fine pursuant to NRS 365.600, the Department will impose that fine
for violations occurring within the 3 yearsimmediately preceding the most recent violation
according to the following schedule:

() For afirst offense, afine of not ftessthan-$100-er} more than $500.

(b) For asecond offense, afine of not less than $500 or more than $1,000.

(c) For athird offense, afine of not less than $1,000 or more than $1,500.

(d) For afourth or subsequent offense, afine of not less than $1,500 or more than $2,500.

2. The Department may impose afine of not less than $1,500 or more than $2,500 for:

(@) Any violation of subsection 1 or 2 of NRS 365.500 or NRS 365.505 to 365.530, inclusive;
or

(b) Any violation committed by:

(1) An exporter who sells or distributes motor vehicle fuel in this State or any other person
who engages in business in this State as a supplier without obtaining a supplier’s license; or

(2) A supplier who, after receiving a notice from the Department that a supplier is not
licensed pursuant to chapter 365 of NRS, sells special fuel to the unlicensed supplier without
collecting the tax imposed pursuant to NRS 365.175 to 365.192, inclusive.

3. Inlieu of imposing afine against a person for a first offense pursuant to paragraph (a)
of subsection 1, the Department may issue to the person a notice of violation and directive to
cease from any further violation.

4. A person who has been fined pursuant to NRS 365.600 shall pay the fine to the
Department not later than the date specified in the notice of violation, unless he requests a

hearing pursuant to subsection 1 of that section.
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41 5. Upon thefailure of a person to pay afine imposed pursuant to this section when it
becomes due, the Department may suspend, revoke or refuse to issue alicense to that person
pursuant to this chapter.

Sec. 3. Chapter 366 of NAC is hereby amended by adding thereto the provisions set forth
as sections 4, 5 and 6 of this regulation.

Sec. 4. 1. Except asotherwise provided in this section, if the Department imposes an
administrative fine pursuant to NRS 366.735, the Department will impose that fine for
violations occurring within the 4 years immediately preceding the most recent violation
according to the following schedule:

(a) For afirst offense, an administrative fine of $2,500 and will suspend any license issued
to the person pursuant to chapter 366 of NRS for not more than 30 days;

(b) For a second offense, an administrative fine of $5,000 and will suspend any license
issued to the person pursuant to chapter 366 of NRS for not more than 60 days; or

(c) For athird or subsequent offense, an administrative fine of $10,000 and will revoke
any license issued to the person pursuant to chapter 366 of NRS for not more than 1 year.

2. If the Department imposes an administrative fine specified in subsection 1 and the
person against whom the fine is imposed submits evidence satisfactory to the Department
establishing just cause for reducing the amount of the administrative fine, the Department
may reduce the administrative fine to an amount that is equal to, if the violation is:

(a) A first offense, $1,000 or more but less than $2,500;

(b) A second offense, $2,500 or more but less than $5,000; or

(c) A third or subsequent offense, $5,000 or more but less than $10,000.
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3. A person who has been fined pursuant to NRS 366.735 shall pay the fine to the
Department not later than the date specified in the notice of violation, unless he requests a
hearing pursuant to subsection 2 of NRS 366.740.

4. In addition to any action taken pursuant to subsection 1, upon the failure of a person
to pay an administrative fine imposed pursuant to this section when it becomes due, the
Department may revoke or refuse to issue a license to that person pursuant to chapter 366 of
NRS.

Sec. 5. 1. Except asotherwise provided in this section, if the Department imposes an
administrative fine pursuant to NRS 366.733, the Department will impose that fine for
violations occurring within the 3 years immediately preceding the most recent violation
according to the following schedule:

(a) For afirst offense, an administrative fine of not less than $2,500 and not more than
$10,000.

(b) For asecond or subsequent offense, an administrative fine of $10,000.

2. A person who has been fined pursuant to NRS 366.733 shall pay the fine to the
Department not later than the date specified in the notice of violation, unless he requests a
hearing pursuant to subsection 2 of NRS 366.740.

3. Inlieu of imposing an administrative fine against a person for a first offense pursuant
to paragraph (a) of subsection 1, the Department may issue to the person a notice of violation
and directive to cease from any further violation.

4. Upon thefailure of a person to pay an administrative fine imposed pursuant to this
section when it becomes due, the Department may:

(a) Lock and seal the business of the person pursuant to NRS 360A.365; or
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(b) Revoke or refusetoissue alicense to that person pursuant to chapter 366 of NRS.

Sec. 6. A gpecial fuel user whoisthe holder of a special fuel user’slicenseissued by the
Department and who operates solely in this State shall file the quarterly or annual tax return
required pursuant to NRS 366.380 directly with the Department.

Sec. 7. NAC 366.0065 is hereby amended to read as follows:

366.0065 i} Asusedin NRS 366.085, the Department will interpret the term

“incidentally operated or moved upon a highway” to fhctude-any-travel-by-any-spectal-mebie

y} mean “ off-highway

—f{e)y-Totaciitate the- movement-of-tratfic-on-a-pubhic-highway-} 26 U.S.C. § 4041(b)(1)(C).
Sec. 8. NAC 366.090 is hereby amended to read as follows:

366.090 1. Except asotherwise provided in NAC 366.093, a special fuel supplier fmay}

shall electronically submit the tax return required pursuant to the provisions of NRS 366.383 |-
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(@ On or after July 1, 2006, but before January 1, 2007, if the special fuel supplier:

(1) Receives 1,000,000 gallons or more of special fuel for which taxes must be paid
pursuant to subsection 2 of NRS 366.383 during a monthly period; or

(2) Receives 5,000,000 gallons or more of any type of special fuel during a monthly
period.

(b) On or after January 1, 2007, but before January 1, 2008, if the special fuel supplier:

(1) Receives 100,000 gallons or more but less than 1,000,000 gallons of special fuel for
which taxes must be paid pursuant to subsection 2 of NRS 366.383 during a monthly period,;
or

(2) Receives 1,000,000 gallons or more but less than 5,000,000 gallons of any type of
gpecial fuel during a monthly period.

(c) On and after January 1, 2008, if the special fuel supplier has not electronically
submitted the form pursuant to paragraph (a) or (b) before that date.

2. Thereturn required pursuant to ftheprovisions-of} subsection 1 [-thereturn} must be:

(8 Submitted in aformat prescribed by the Department; and

(b) Accompanied by the payment of any tax that the special fuel supplier is required to remit
with the return.

3. The payment of any tax that the special fuel supplier is required to remit with the return
must be made [threugh-the- use-ef-a-credit-carda-debit-card-or-thel using an electronic transfer
of money.

4. A return filed pursuant to ftheprevisiensef} subsection 1 shall be deemed received by

the Department after:
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(@) Thereturnisaccessble to the Department; and

(b) The Department has received the payment of any tax that the special fuel supplier was
required to remit with the return.

Sec. 9. NAC 366.400 is hereby amended to read as follows:

366.400 1. Except asotherwise provided in fsubsection-2} this section, if the Department
imposes an administrative fine pursuant to NRS 366.740, the Department will impose that fine
for violations occurring paith} within the 3 yearsimmediately preceding the most recent
violation according to the following schedule:

(@) For thefirst offense, fal an administrative fine of not Hessthan-$100-er} more than $500.

(b) For the second offense, fal an administrative fine of not less than $500 or more than
$1,000.

(c) For thethird offense, fal an administrative fine of not less than $1,000 or more than
$1,500.

(d) For afourth or subsequent offense, fal an administrative fine of not less than $1,500 or

more than $2,500.

2. |If the Department imposes an administrative fine pursuant to NRS 366.740 for a

violation of NRS 366.223 or 366.265, the Department will, if the violation is:
(a) Afirst offense, impose an administrative fine of $500;
(b) A second offense, impose an administrative fine of $1,500;
(c) Athird offense, impose an administrative fine of $2,000; or

(d) A fourth or subsequent offense, impose an administrative fine of $2,500.
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3. The Department may impose fa} an administrative fine of not less than $1,500 or more
than $2,500 for any violation of subsection 3 of NRS 366.140, NRS 366.207 or 366.220, or
subsection 2 of NRS 366.395.

31 4. Inlieu of imposing an administrative fine against a person for a first offense
pursuant to paragraph (a) of subsection 1, the Department may issue to the person a notice of
violation and directive to cease from any further violation.

5. Unless a person who has been fined pursuant to the provisions of NRS 366.740 requests a
hearing pursuant to subsection 2 of that section, the person shall pay the fine to the Department
not later than the date specified in the notice of violation.

4} 6. Upon the failure of a person to pay fa} an administrative fine imposed pursuant to
this section when the fine becomes due, the Department may suspend, revoke or refuse to issue a

license to that person pursuant to the provisions of this chapter.
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